U.S. CONSUMER PRODUCT SAFETY COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20207

Record of Commission Action
Commissioners Voting by Ballot *

Commissioners Voting: Chairman Ann Brown
Commissioner Mary Sheila Gall
Commissioner Thomas H. Moore

ITEM
Draft Bill and Press Release Conceming Legislation to Expand CPSC's Enforcement
Authority

DECISION

The Commission voted 2-1 to approve a draft press release, and the position taken in
it, concerning draft legislation to amend provisions of the Consumer Product Safety
Act and the Federal Hazardous Substances Act with respect to repair, replacement, or
refund actions; civil penalties; and criminal penalties, to help expand CPSC's authority
to crack down on firms that are not reporting defective products to the agency.
Chairman Brown and Commissioner Moore voted to approve. Commissioner Galll
voted in dissent and filed a statement conceming her vote, copy attached.

For the Commission:;

Sty €

Sadye E. Dunn
Secretary

* Ballot vote due May 12, 2000



STATEMENT OF THE HONORABLE
MARY SHEILA GALL IN OPPOSITION TO THE
CONSUMER PRODUCT SAFETY COMMISSION

ENHANCED ENFORCMENT ACT OF 2000

May 12, 2000

The Commission has been presented with a ballot asking it to endorse, oppose, or
modify a press release accompanied by a draft bill labeled the “Consumer Product Safety
Commission Enhanced Enforcement Act of 2000.” I write to express my opposition to
this draft legislation.

Restricting Election of Remedy

Section 2 of the draft legislation modifies the procedures governing the election of
the “repair, replace or refund” remedy that Section 15 of the Consumer Product Safety
Act (CPSA) and Section 15 of the Federal Hazardous Substances Act (FHSA) give to
manufacturers, distributors and retailers. The change enables the Commission to reject
the election made by the manufacturer, distributor or retailer to repair, replace or refund
the defective item, if the Commission finds that the election was not in the public interest.
The effect of this change would be to enable the Commission to virtually dictate the
remedy.

Under present law the Commission is not helpless if a repair, replace or refund
program is not protecting the public. If the Commission concludes that the remedy
elected and carried out by the manufacturer, distributor or retailer has not eliminated or
adequately reduced the risk from the defective product, the Commission may reopen the
case. The present system strikes an adequate balance between product safety and
economic rationality and I do not support a change.

Eliminating Civil Penalty Limits

Section 3 of the draft legislation eliminates any limits on civil penalties for
violations of the CPSA or the FHSA. Eliminating limits would obviously increase the
stakes of any failure to report. At the same time, there has been no civil penalty during
the time during which I have served as Commissioner that came close to the present limit
of 1.6 million dollars. (A staff-developed list of civil penalties assessed in the last five
years is attached.) It is, therefore, difficult to see how eliminating the civil penalty
limitation would matenially improve the Commission’s enforcement ability. It is the
certainty of a penalty, rather than its theoretical upper limit that serves as a better
deterrent to failures to report product hazards,



Criminal Violations

Section 4 of the draft legislation amends the CPSA to create two tiers of criminal
violations. A “knowing” violation of Section 19 is a misdemeanor. Under present law a
violation must be both knowing and willful to be even a misdemeanor. Section 4 of the
draft legislation further amends the CPSA to make a knowing and willful violation of
Section 19 a felony. The legislation eliminates the present requirement that there be a
notice of noncompliance from the Commission, and an opportunity for a company to
come into compliance, prior to a criminal violation of the CPSA. The same section of the
draft legislation makes willful violations of the FHSA a felony.

I do not oppose making criminal violations of the CPSA and FHSA felonies, but I
firmly oppose removing the requirement that companies be told that they are in
noncompliance with the CPSA, and be given an opportunity to come into compliance,
before being prosecuted for criminal violations of the CPSA. While the Commission
does deal with many large companies that have staff and counsel who are aware of the
Commission and its activities, the Commission also encounters many small companies
who have no idea that the Commission even exists and that there are regulations or
standards concerning the products that they make. These companies should not be
subject to criminal prosecution for violation of the CPSA without receiving at least a
notice that they are in violation and an opportunity to correct the violation,

During my over eight years of service as a Commissioner, I have been a strong
supporter of the Commission’s enforcement function. This legislation, despite its label,
would do little to actually enhance that function and contains elements of both economic
irrationality and of unfairness to manufacturers, distributors and retailers.



Penalties for Failure to Report 1996-2000

Over the past 5 years, CPSC has fined 21 firms for failing to report nearly 360 injuries and four
deaths associated with hazardous products.

Firm

Black & Decker toasters

Baby's Dream cribs

Hasbro infant carriers

Lancaster Col. candles

Carter Bros. go-karts

Shimano bicycle cranks

Central Sprinkler fire sprinklers 7

Penalty

$575,000

£200,000
$400,000

$150,000

$125,000

$150,000

Hazard

2000

fire

fingertip
amputations

skuli fracture

fires and burns

death

fractures and
lacerations

Injuries (before report)

73 fires/2 imjuries

9 amputations/crushed fingers

8, 7 were skull fractures

1 deat_h, 1 skult fracture

630 failures, 22 including
fractures and lacerations

17 fires, 4 injuries

Binky Griptight pacifiers

Century Products cribs and
strollers

COA Inc.cribs

Safety First bed rails

Brinkmann smokers and
fryers

CSA Inc. exercisers
Hartman hair dryers
Nutone stereos

Toro riding mowers

JBI Inc. playground
equipment

Singer Sewing juicers
National Media juicers

Taito America arcade games
wrists/arms '

Cosco taddler hed quardwilg

$150,000

$225,000
$166,000

$300,000

$175,000

$100,000
$60,000

$110,000

$225,000

$120,000
$150,000

$50,000

#$725 000

suffocation

suffocation
impact injury

suffocation

suffocation

lacerations, fire

impact injury

_ﬂre

fire

no mjuries

1 death
29 injuries

no injuries

1 death, many lesser injuries

52 incidents, many injuries
no injuries

12 fires, no injuries

70 injuries including 40 fractures

19 incidents, 10 injuries
9 injuries

70 injured/fractured
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106TH CONGRESS

2D Session . H.R.

IN THE JOUSE OF PEPRESENTATIVES

- mntroduced the following bill; which was
referred to the Committee on

A BILL

To amend title 15, United Stat2s Code, regardirg repair, replacement, or refund actions,
civil penalties, and crimina’ penaltics under the Consumer Product Safety Act and the
Federal Hazwrc'»us Subsiences Act.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of
America in Congress assembled,

SEC. 1. SHORT TITLE
This Act may be cited as the “Consumer Product Safety Commission Enhanced

Enforcement Act of 2000."

SEC. 2. REPAIR, RE"LAéELll NL- OR REFUND
A. The Céhsumer Product Safety Act, Section 2064(d) of title 15, United States
Code, is amended —
(1) by striking “If” in line 1 of paragraph 1 and inserting “Subject

to the last paragraph of this subsection, if’; and

(2) by adding at the end the following:
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“If the Commigsiqn determines (after affording opportunity for an
informal he,a'.ring) that the action that the manufacturer, distributor or
retailer has elected to take under subsection (d)(1), (2), or (3) is not in the
public interest, the Commission shall order the manufacturer, distributor
or retailer to take whichever other action or actions specified in subsection
(d)(1), (2), or (3) that the Commission determines to be in the public
interest. If the Commiss@gn determines that both of the remaining actions
specified in subsection (d)(1), (2), or (3) are in the public interest, the
Commission shall order the manufacturer, distributor or retailer to take

whichever of those actions the manufacturer, distributor or retailer elects.”

B. The Federal Hazardous Substances Act, Section 1274(b) of title 15, United

States‘Code, is amended —

(1) by striking “If” in line 1 of paragraph 1 and inserting “Subject
to the last paragraph of this subsection, if”; and

(2) by adding at the end the following:

“If the Commission determines (after affording opportunity for an
informal hearing) that the action that the manufacturer, distributor or
dealer has elected to tuke urder subsection (b)(1), (2), or (3) is not in the
public interest, the Ccmmission shall order the manufacturer, distributor
or dealer to take whichever other action or actions-specified in subsection
(b)(1), (2), or (3) that the Commission determines to be in the public
interest. If the Commission determines that botlr of the remaining actions

specified in subsection (b)(l), (2), or (3) are in the public interest, the
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Commission shall order the manufacturer, distributor or dealer to take

whichever o.f" those actions the manufacturer, distributor or dealer elects.”

C. The Federal Hazardous Substances Act, Section 1274(c)(2) of title 15, United
States Code, is amended to read as follows:

(1 by striking “’f” in a2 1 of paragraph 1 and inserting “Subject
to the last paragraph <f :his :ubéecition,if’; and

= (2) by adding at the end the following:

“If the Commission determines (after affording opportunity for an
informal hearing) that the action that the manufacturer, distributor( or
dealef has elected to take under subsection (c)(2)(A), (B) or (C) is not in
the public interest, the Commission shall order the manufacturer,

’ distributor or dealer tc tak2 wilichever othér action or actioas specified in
subsection (c)(2)(A),l (B) or (C) that the Commission determines to be in
the public interest. If the Commission determines that both of the
remaining actions specified in subsection (c)(2)(A), (B) or (C) are in the
public interest, the Commission shall order the manufacturer, distributor
or dealer to take whichever of those actions the manufacturer, distributor

or dealer elects.”

SEC. 3. CIVIL PENALTIES
A. The Consumer Product Safety Act, Section 2069(a) of title 15, United States
Code, is amended to read as follows:

(a)(1) Any person who knowingly violates section 19 of this Act

shall be subject to a civil penalty not to exceed $7,000 for each such



\

violation. Subject to paragraph (2), a violation of section 19(a)(1), (2),
@), (5), (6),:(7), (8), (9), (10), or (11) shall constitute a separate offense
with respect to each consumer product involved. A violation of section
19(a)(3) shall constitute a separate violation with respect to each failure or
refusal to allew or perform 2n act requiréd thereby; and, if ~such violation
is a continuing one, each day c{ such violations shall constitute a separate
- offense.’
(2) The second sentence of paragraph (1) of this subsection shall
not apply to violations of paragraph (1) or (2) of section 19(a) —
| (A) if the person who violated such paragraphs is not the
manufacturer or private labeler or a distributor of the products
involved, and
(B) if such ps "zan did not have either (i) actual knowledge
that his distribution or sale of the product violated such paragraphs
or (ii) notice from the Commission that such distribution or sale
would be a violation of such paragraphs.

(3)  (A) The penalty amount authorized in paragraph (1) shall

— be adjusted for inflaticn as provided in this paragraph.

(B) Not later than December 1, 2005, and December 1 of
each fifth calendar year thereafter, the Commission shall prescribe
and publish in the Federal Register the authorized penalty amount

that shall apply for violations that occur dfter January 1 of the year

£

immediately following such publication.



(C) The authorized penalty amount shall be preécribed by
increasing the amount referred to in paragraph (1) by the cost-of-
living adjustment for the preceding five years. Any increase
determined under the preceding sentence shall be rounded up to -

(1) in the case of a penalty amount less than or equal to
$1C,000, the n=erest mei'tiple of $1,000;

= (i1) in the case cf a penalty amount gre:ater than $10,000,
the nearest multiple of $5,000.

(D) For purposes of this subsection:

(i) The term “Consumer Price Index” means the Consumer
Price Index for all-urban consumers published by the Department

of Labor.

\l

(i) ‘The term 4“cost-cf-living adjustment for the preceding
five years” means the pefcentage by which -
() the Consumer Price Index for the month of June
of the calendar year preceding the adjustment; exceeds
(IT) the Consumer Price Index for the month of
— June preceding the date on which the maximum authorized
pen: :y was I~st adjusted.
B. The Federal Hazardous ‘Substa.1ées Act, Section 1264(c) of title 15, United
States Code, is amended to read as follows:

1) Any person who knowingly violates section 4 shall be subject
p

(3

to a civil penalty not to exceed $7,000 for each such violation. Subject to
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paragraph (2), a violation of subsections (a), (b), (c), (d), (f), (g), (), (),
and (k) of se;:tion 4 shall constitute a separate offense with respect to each
substance involved. A violation of section 4(e) shall constitute a separate
violation with respect to each failure or refusal to allovy or perform an act
required by section 4(e); and, if such violation is a continuing one, each
day of such violation shall co-st:tute a separate offense.

(2) The secoad sentence o% paragranh (1) of this subsection shall
not apply to violations of subsection (a) or (c) of section 4 —

(A) if the person who violated such subsection is not the
manufacturer, importer, or private labeler or a distributor of the
substance involved; and

(B) if such person did not have either (i) actual knowledge
that such person’s d.ctribution or sale of the substance violated
such subsection, or (ii) notice from the Commission that such
distribution or sale would be a violation of such subsection.

(3) In determining the amount of any penalty to be sought upon
commencing an action seeking to assess a penalty for a violation of
section 4, the Commission shall consider the nature of the substance, the
severity of the risk of injury, the occurrence or absence of injury, the
amount of the substance distributed, and the appropriateness of such
penalty in relation to the size of the business of the person charged.

(4) Any civil penalty under this subsection may be compromised

£

by the Commission. In determining the amount of such penalty or



\l

whether it should be remitted or mitigated, and in what amount, the
Commission"shall consider the appropriateness of such penalty to the size
of the business of the persons charged, the nature of the substance
involved, the severity of the risk of injury, the occurrence or absence of
injury, and the amount of the substance distributed. The amount of such
peralty when tinally dettérmin'-tﬂ; or th2 amount agreed on compromise,
may be deducted from any suras owing by the United States to the person
charged. | |

(5) As used in the first séntence of paragraph (1), the term
“knm};/ingly” means (A) having actual knowledge, or (B) the presumed

having of knowledge deemed to be possessed by a reasonable person who

acts in the circumstinces, including knowledge obtainable upon the

exercise of due care * nscertaj.rll the truth of representations.
(6) (A) The penalty amount authorized in paragraph (1) shall
be adjusted for inflation as provided in this paragraph.

(B) Not later than December 1, 2005, and December 1 of
each fifth calendar year thereafter, the Commission shall prescribe
and publish in the Federal Register the authorized penalty amount
that shall ap};l)'l for viv'~tions that occur after January 1 of the year
immediately fcllow.ng such pul 'ication.

(C) The authorized penalty amount shall be prescribed by

increasing the amount referred to in paragraph (1) by the cost-of-
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living adjustment for the preceding five years. Any increase
determined under the preceding sentence shall be rounded up to -
(i) in the case of a penalty amount less than or equal to $10,000,
the nearest multiplg of $1,000; .
(i) in the case of a penalty amount greater than $10,000, the
nearest multiple of $5,000.
- (D) For purposes of this subsection:
(1) The term “Consumer Price Index” means the Consumer Price
Index for all-urban consumers published by the Department of Labor.
g (i) The term “cost-of-living adjustment for the preceding five
years” means the percentage by which -
(I) the Consumer Price Index for the month of June of the
calendar year preceding the adjustment; exceeds
(I) the Consumer Price Index for the month of June

preceding the date on which the maximum authorized penalty was

last adjusted.

SEC. 4. CRIMINAL PENALTIES

e —

A. The Consumer Product Safety Act, Section 2070 of title 15, United States
Code, is amended to read as follows:
(a) Any person who knowingly violates section 19 of this Act
shall be fined under title 18, United States Coge, or be imprisoned not
more than one year, or both, if such person is an individual, or fined under

title 18, United States Code, if such person is an organization (as the term
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“organization” is deﬁn‘ed' in 18 U.S.C. 18). Any person who knowingly
and willfully’ violates section 19 of this Act shall be fined under title 18,
United States Code, or be imprisoned not more than three years, or both, if
such person is an individual, or fined under title 18, United States Code, if
such person is an orgcrization.

(b) Any inc’ .dual ‘;'.',:: *tor, officar, /'_or agent of a corporation who
authorizes, orders, or p:rfé;ms any of the acts or practices constituting in
whole or in part a violation of subsection (a) shall be subject to penalties

under this section without regard to any penalties to which that

corpdration may be subject under subsection (a).

B. The Federal Hazardous Substances Act, Section 1264(a) of title 15, United

States ‘Code, is amended to read as follows:

Any person who viéfatesn anycf the provisions of section 4 shall be guilty
of a misdemeanor and shall on conviction thereof be subject to a fine
under title 18, United States Code, or to imprisonment for not more than
one year, or both, if such person is an individual, or to a fine under title 18,
United States Code, if such person is an organization (as the term
“organization” is defined in 18 U.S.C. 18); but for offenses committed
willfully, cr for second arl subsequart offenses, the penalty shall be
irr-lprisonment for not more than three years, or a fine under title 18,
United States Code, or both, if such person is an individual, or a fine under

title 18, United States Code, if such person is an organization.



